
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA 

 
 
 
 
 

FEBRUARY 21, 2011 
 

 



Document last changed: 2/16/2011 8:10 AM 

 

Currituck County 
Board of Commissioners Agenda  

Historic Currituck County Courthouse 

 
 Date: Monday, February 21, 2011 Time: 7:00 PM 

 
  

Work Sessions 
5:00 P.M. joint meeting with Camden Board of Commissioners to discuss OLF at 
the Cooperative Extension Building   
 
Regular Agenda 
7:00 p.m. Invocation 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Item 1 Approval of Agenda 

Item 2 Public Comment 
Please limit comments to items not appearing on the regular 
agenda, please limit comments to 3 minutes. 

Item 3 Amy Underhill, Presentation of Currituck Community Health 
Assessment   

Item 4 Janie Mercer, EIC, presentation on the Anti-Poverty Plan   

Item 5 Public Hearing and Action:  PB 88-66 Villages at Ocean Hill PUD: 
Request to amend an SUP to relocate an automobile parking area 
adjacent to NC 12 (Ocean Trail).  The property is located on NC 12 
and adjacent to Lakeside Drive and the Villages at Ocean Hill 
wastewater disposal area, Tax Map 114, Parcel 3P, Poplar Branch 
- Outer Banks Township. 

Item 6 Appointments to Senior Citizen Advisory Board   

Item 7 Appointments to the Board of Adjustment   

Item 8 Consent Agenda: 
1. Resolution for CWSRF & RLf Funding for utility projects 
2. Resolution for ARH to seek Legislation to amend NCGS 136-

44.7 
3. Budget Amendments 

1



Document last changed: 2/16/2011 8:10 AM 

 
4. Approval of February 7, 2011, Minutes 
5. Resolution to declare Surplus Property 
6. Order the Tax Collector to advertise the 2010 real estate tax 

liens          
7. Approval of State Airport Aid Grant Agreement 

Item 9 Commissioner’s Report 

Item 10 County Manager’s Report 

Adjourn 

 

 

2



  
Currituck County  

Department of Planning 
Post Office Box 70 

Currituck, North Carolina 27929 
252-232-3055 

FAX 252-232-3026 

 

 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Board of Commissioners 
 
From: Planning Staff 
  
Date: February 14, 2011 
 
Re:  PB 88-66 Villages at Ocean Hill – Amended Special Use Permit 
 
 
 
Ocean Hill Commercial, LLC is requesting to amend a Special Use Permit (SUP) to relocate 
an automobile parking area adjacent to NC12 (Ocean Trail).  Chapter 11 of the Unified 
Development Ordinance requires major amendments to be approved by the permit issuing 
authority, which in this case is the Board of Commissioners.   
 
The original SUP was approved by the Board of Commissioners on July 7, 2008.  In this 
approval, the automobile parking area was located to the rear of the property, out of view 
from NC12.  The applicant has not proceeded with the original approval and is now 
requesting the parking area be shifted eastward. 
 
Staff has reviewed a conceptual drawing submitted by the applicant; however, a formal site 
plan has not been submitted.  During previous meetings, staff has expressed concern with 
screening of the automobile parking area if it is located adjacent to NC12.  It may be 
necessary for the Board to require that existing vegetation be preserved, or additional 
screening material be established.  Should the Board approve the amended SUP, staff 
recommends a revised site plan be submitted to the Technical Review Committee for 
approval.   
 
Enclosed is a copy of the original Special Use Permit, the application submitted by Mr. 
Friedman on behalf of Ocean Hill Commercial, LLC, and a map illustrating the proposed 
location of the automobile parking area. 
 
Should you have any questions, do not hesitate to contact Ben Woody at 232-3055. 

3



4



5



6



7



8



SENIOR CITIZEN ADVISORY BOARD
3 Year Terms

Nominated Date of
Incumbent by New Appointee Nominated by Appointment End of Term

Shirley Falls District 1 2nd       1/11/2012

Jo Stepp District 2 1st       7/20/2012

Rose Wright District 3 1st       1/14/2013

Doris Balance District 4 11/1/2013

Rosalie Rose* District 5 Marion Gilbert 1st         1/1/2011

Martha Burns* At-Large Paul O'Neal 1st       1/19/2011

Gerri Andrews* At-Large Paul Martin 1st       4/15/2011

* May be Reappointed

Diane Bray has requested that Rosalie Rose, Martha Burns and Gerri Andrews be reappointed

9



BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT

Nominated Date of
Incumbent by New Appointee Nominated by Appointment End of Term

Christian Conner District 1  12/1/2012

Bryan Bass District 2 12/31/2011
2nd Term

Earl Wemer (1) (Alternate)* District 3 Butch Petrey 12/31/2010
2nd Term

Paul Beaumont (4)* District 4 Owen Etheridge 12/31/2010
1st Term

Tom Roddy (Alternate)** District 5 Marion Gilbert 12/31/2010

Ralph Jones At Large 12/31/2011

Donald Ferebee At-Large 12/31/2009 12/31/2011

*  May Not Be Reappointed
** May be Reappointed

10



t i 1

i rrrrtcic

APPLICATLON FOR ADVISORY BOARDS COMMiTTEFS

Date Feb 11 2011

Name C Shav Ballance

Address 122 Lueinda Ln PO Box 134 Harbinger NC 27941

Phone2522075656 Email ShayBailance@Hotmailcom

Boards or Committees on which you would like to serve

Please check

ABC Board

Agricultural Advisory Board
Airport Advisory Board

Board ofAdjustment
Economic Development Board

Game Commission

Jury Commission

Land Transfer Tax Appeals Board

Library Board

Nursing Home Advisory Committee

Planning Board

Recreation Advisory Board

Senior Citizens Advisory Board
Social Services Board

Tourism Advisory Board

Whalehead Preservation Trust

Workforce Development Board

Qualifications and reasons you would like to serve

1 representover 7 generations of my family living and working here in Currituck I would be proud

to serve an any way that will help ensure a great future for Currituck and its citizens to be as

proud to be from Currituck as I am

Please mail the completed form to County Managers Office
POBox 39

Currituck NC 27929

Revised U122011

11



az rwerraauswrJWzi C1Si rici w u ti c

Print Form

CurrGtukY

APPLICATION FOR ADVISORY BOARDS COMvIITTEE5

Date Feb 2 2011

Name Karen Ish

Address 1203 Bismark Drive PO Box 203 Corolla NC 27927

Phone2522020138 Emailobxishaolcom

Boazds or Committeeson which you would like to serve

Please check

ABC Boazd

Agricultural Advisory Board

Airport Advisory Board
Board ofAdjustment
Economic Development Board
Game Commission

Jury Commission

Land Transfer Tax Appeals Board
Library Board

Nursing Home Advisory Committee

Planning Board
Recreation Advisory Board
Senior Citizens Advisory Board
Social Services Board
Tourism Advisory Board
Whalehead Preservation Trust
Workforce Development Board

Qualifications and reasons you would like to serve
I have a bachelor of science degree in business and am interested in the future development of

e oun is impo an o aante aeconomic gro an eve opmen n s an
opportunities with reasonable rational conservation and a responsible approach to infrastructure

helping it gnrnr in a way that future generations will appreciate

Please mail the completed foam to County Managers Office
PO Box 39

Currituck NC 27929

Revised1122011

12



RESOLUTION TO SUPPORT CURRITUCK COUNTY APPLICATION  
TO CLEAN WATER STATE REVOLVING FUNDS PROGRAM & NORTH CAROLINA 

REVOLVING LOAN & GRANT FUND PROGRAMS FOR:  
MOYOCK CENTRAL WWTP EXPANSION & MAPLE COMMERCE PARK WWTP 

 
WHEREAS, The Federal Clean Water Act Amendments of 1987 and the North Carolina the Water 

Infrastructure Act of 2005 (NCGS 159G) have authorized the making of loans and grants 
to aid eligible units of government in financing the cost of construction of a wastewater 
treatment system, and 

WHEREAS, Currituck County has need for and intends to construct a wastewater treatment system 
project described as the Moyock Central WWTP Expansion & Maple Commerce Park 
WWTP, and 

WHEREAS, Currituck County intends to request State grant and loan assistance for the project, 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE COUNTY OF 
CURRITUCK:  

That Currituck County the Applicant, will arrange financing for all remaining costs of the 
project, if approved for a State loan and grant award. 

That the Applicant will adopt and place into effect on or before completion of the 
project a schedule of fees and charges and other available funds which will provide 
adequate funds for proper operation, maintenance, and administration of the system 
and the repayment of all principal and interest on the debt. 

That the governing body of the Applicant agrees to include in the loan agreement a 
provision authorizing the State Treasurer, upon failure of the County of Currituck to 
make scheduled repayment of the loan, to withhold from the County of Currituck any 
State funds that would otherwise be distributed to the local government unit in an 
amount sufficient to pay all sums then due and payable to the State as a repayment of 
the loan. 

That the Applicant will provide for efficient operation and maintenance of the project 
on completion of construction thereof. 

That Daniel F. Scanlon II, Currituck County Manager the Authorized Official, and 
successors so titled, is hereby authorized to execute and file an application on behalf of 
the Applicant with the State of North Carolina for a loan and grant to aid in the 
construction of the project described above. 

That the Authorized Official, and successors so titled, is hereby authorized and directed 
to furnish such information as the appropriate State agency may request in connection 
with such application or the project:  to make the assurances as contained above; and to 
execute such other documents as may be required in connection with the application. 

That the Applicant has substantially complied or will substantially comply with all 
Federal, State, and local laws, rules, regulations, and ordinances applicable to the 
project and to Federal and State grants and loans pertaining thereto. 

Adopted this the 21st day of February at Currituck, North Carolina. 

13



 

 

 

(Signature of Chief Executive Officer) 

 

 

 

 (Title) 

14



 

 

CERTIFICATION BY RECORDING OFFICER 
 

 

The undersigned duly qualified and acting County Manager of the County of Currituck does hereby 

certify:  That the above/attached resolution is a true and correct copy of the resolution authorizing the 

filing of an application with the State of North Carolina, as regularly adopted at a legally convened 

meeting of the Currituck County Board of Commissioners duly held on the 21st day of  February                       

, 2011; and, further, that such resolution has been fully recorded in the journal of proceedings and 

records in my office.  IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this 22nd day of  February                      

, 2011. 

 

 

(Signature of Recording Officer) 

 

(Title of Recording Officer) 

 

15



 
 
 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION FOR ALBEMARLE REGIONAL HEALTH SERVICES 
d/b/a INTER-COUNTY PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

TO SEEK LEGISLATION TO AMEND N.C.G.S 136-44.27 
NORTH CAROLINA ELDERLY AND DISABLED  
TRANSPORTATION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 

 
 
WHEREAS, Albemarle Regional Health Services d/b/a Inter-County Public Transportation 
Authority is a Public Transportation Authority created under N.C.G.S 160-575, which serves 
the counties of Chowan, Perquimans, Pasquotank, Camden, and Currituck. 
 
WHEREAS, this amendment will, by local resolution, allow the member counties of a 
Regional Public Transportation Authority created under N.C.G.S 160-575 to apply for the 
county’s Elderly & Disabled Transportation Assistance Program funding regionally through 
the Regional Public Transportation Authority and combine the funding to seamlessly serve 
the entire region.   
 
WHEREAS, by assuming the responsibility of completing the grant application, directly 
receiving, and reporting on this funding regionally, the Regional Public Transportation 
Authority created under N.C.G.S 160-575 will assume all fiduciary, reporting, public 
notification, and audit requirements associated with the N.C.G.S 136-44.27.   
 
WHEREAS, the purpose is to amend N.C.G.S 136-44.27 North Carolina Elderly and 
Disabled Transportation Assistance Program to accomplish the following objectives: 
 
ü Reduce the number of Rural Operating Assistance Program (ROAP) accounts 

ARHS-ICPTA manages from thirty (30) down to six (6). 
ü Allow a Regional Public Transportation Authority created under N.C.G.S 160-575 to 

leverage the region’s current EDTAP allocation against the FTA Section 5310 Grant 
for Elderly Individuals and Individuals with Disabilities created under SAFETEA-LU, 
which is a 50/50 grant.  

ü Reduce the number of grant applications and reports NCDOT will have to review 
concerning North Carolina’s ROAP program. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved; that Albemarle Regional Health Services d/b/a Inter-
County Public Transportation Authority will seek Legislation to amend N.C.G.S 136-44.27 
North Carolina Elderly and Disabled Transportation Assistance Program. 
 
ADOPTED this 21st day of February, 2011. 
 
             
      O. Vance Aydlett, Chairman 
ATTEST:     Currituck County Board of Commissioners 
 
      
Gwen H. Keene. CMC 
Clerk to the Board 

16



Number 2011079

 Debit  Credit 

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense

10752-519601 Smart Start Daycare 25,238$                      
10330-432800 Daycare 16,393$                      
10752-519600 Child Daycare 41,631$                   

41,631$                      41,631$                   

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 21st day of February, 2011 , 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2011.

Public Assistance (10752) - Adjust Daycare budget to the State's funding reversions.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Decreased by $16,393.

17



Number 2011080

 Debit  Credit 

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense

10796-516000 Maintenance & Repair 622$                        
10796-516200 Vehicle Maintenance 622$                          

622$                          622$                        

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 21st day of February, 2011 , 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2011.

Rural Center (10796) - Transfer funds for trailer hitch for truck at the Rural Center.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change.

18



Number 2011081

 Debit  Credit 

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense

10446-526200 Promotional Efforts 4,800$                     
10446-511000 Telephone & Postage 4,800$                        

4,800$                        4,800$                     

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 21st day of February, 2011 , 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2011.

Public Information (10446) - Transfer funds for postage for the Focus for the remainder of this fiscal year.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change.

19



CURRITUCK COUNTY 
NORTH CAROLINA 
February 7, 2011  
 
The Board of Commissioners met at 6:30 p.m. to discuss the sign 
ordinance. 
  
The Board of Commissioners met at 7:00 p.m. for its regularly 
scheduled meeting at the Historic Courthouse in the 
Commissioners Meeting Room with the following members present:  
Vice-Chairman Rorer, Commissioners Etheridge, O’Neal, Gilbert, 
Etheridge and Martin. Chairman Aydlett was absent due to 
illness. 
 
Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance 
The Reverend Sandy Martin was present to give the 
invocation. 

Approval of Agenda 

Commissioner Martin moved to amend the agenda by adding a 
resolution on Mid-County Bridge, and a resolution opposing 
sea level guides by CAMA.  Commissioner Petrey seconded the 
motion.  Motion carried. 
Item 1 Approval of Agenda 

Item 2 Public Comment 
Please limit comments to items not appearing on the regular 
agenda, please limit comments to 3 minutes. 

Item 3 Joy Futrell, East Carolina Behavioral Health  semi-annual report 

Item 4 Public Hearing and Action:  PB 94-49 Currituck Club, Phases 8A and 
1A: Request for a preliminary plat/special use permit for two new 
phases of Currituck Club PUD.  Proposed Phase 8A consists of 29 
residential lots and Phase 1A consists of one residential lot.  
Located at the Currituck Club in Corolla, Tax Map 126G, Parcel D, 
and Tax Map 117, Parcel 1H, Poplar Branch Township. 

Item 5 Appointments to Currituck County FEMS Peer Review Board   

Item 6 Appointments to Economic Development Board   

Item 7 Appointments to Senior Citizen Advisory Board   

Item 8 Appointment of Commissioner to LEPC Committee   

Item 9 Appointments to the Board of Adjustment   

Item 10 Consent Agenda: 
1. Resolution opposing Insurance Rate Increase 
2. Amend Moyock VFD Contract to provide for county to pay invoices 
3. Project Ordinance for Sheriff Vault 

20



February 7, 2011, BOC Meeting   2 

4. Public School Capital Building Fund application for school 
computers 

5. Lottery applications (3) - Knotts Island Elem - replace 
connector roof; JP Knapp - replace chiller; Griggs Elem - bus 
canopy 

6. Budget Amendments 
7. Change Order-Outer Banks Visitor Center 
8. Approval of January 18, 2011, Minutes 
9. Resolution supporting Gap Funding Mid-County Bridge 
 

Item 11 Commissioner’s Report 

Item 12 County Manager’s Report 

Item 13 Closed Session: 
1. According to GS 143-318.11 (4) to discuss economic development 

Adjourn 

Public Comment 
Please limit comments to items not appearing on 
the regular agenda, please limit comments to 3 
minutes. 

Vice-Chairman Rorer opened the public comment period. 

Chip Friedman, requested the Board to consider placing his 
request for Swan Beach on a future agenda. 

Commissioner Etheridge moved to grant the request.  
Commissioner O’Neal seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 

Doris Flora, commended the Board for their success with the 
OLF, but requested the Board to please continue their 
efforts with the Navy. 

The Board requested staff to send a letter of appreciation 
to Juanita Krause and Troy Breathwaite for their work on 
the OLF. 

Peter Bishop, ED Director, stated that the 10th Currituck 
County Business Expo with the Chamber of Commerce will be 
on March 5th at the Currituck High School. 

There being no further comments, the public comment period 
was closed. 

 

Joy Futrell, East Carolina Behavioral Health semi-annual 
report 

21



February 7, 2011, BOC Meeting   3 

Ms. Futrell with East Carolina Behavioral Health, reviewed 
the fiscal monitoring report that ended 12/31/10.  Each 
county was requested a $2 per capita donation. 

Public Hearing and Action:  PB 94-49 Currituck Club, Phases 
8A and 1A: Request for a preliminary plat/special use 
permit for two new phases of Currituck Club PUD.  Proposed 
Phase 8A consists of 29 residential lots and Phase 1A 
consists of one residential lot.  Located at the Currituck 
Club in Corolla, Tax Map 126G, Parcel D, and Tax Map 117, 
Parcel 1H, Poplar Branch Township. 

Sworn testimony was given prior to making comments 

Ben Woody, Planning Director, reviewed the request. 

 
CASE ANALYSIS FOR THE  
Board of Commissioners 
DATE: February 7, 2011 

PB 94-49 Currituck Club, PUD 
 
ITEM:   PB 94-49  Currituck Club, PUD, Phase 8A and 1A 

Preliminary Plat/Special Use Permit.  
 

LOCATION: Corolla, Currituck Club, PUD, Poplar Branch 
Township. 

TAX ID: 126G-000-000D-0000   0117-000-001H-0000 
 
ZONING DISTRICT: Outer Banks Standard Residential (R01) with PUD 

overlay.   
  
PRESENT USE: Vacant 
 
OWNER:  The Currituck Associates Residential Partnership 
   c/o Boddie-Noell Enterprises 
   PO Box 1908 
   Rocky Mount, NC 27802 
 
 The Currituck Associates – Golf Course 

Partnership 
   c/o Boddie-Noell Enterprises 
   PO Box 1908 
   Rocky Mount, NC 27802 
 
APPLICANT:  The Currituck Associates Residential Partnership 
   c/o Boddie-Noell Enterprises 
   PO Box 1908 
   Rocky Mount, NC 27802 

  
LAND USE/ZONING OF SURROUNDING PROPERTY: 

22



February 7, 2011, BOC Meeting   4 

 Land Use Zoning 
NORTH: Golf Course RO1/PUD 

Overlay 
SOUTH Golf Course/Commercial LBH/PUD 

Overlay 
EAST: Residential RO1/PUD 

Overlay 
WEST: Open Space RO1/PUD 

Overlay 
 
LAND USE PLAN  
CLASSIFICATION:  The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies the site 

as Full Service within the Corolla subarea. 
 
SIZE OF SITE: 10.32 acres. 
 
NUMBER OF LOTS: 30 
       
PROJECT DENSITY: 1 lot per 0.344 acres, or 3 lots per 1 acre. 
 
UTILITIES: The development will be served by Carolina 

Water Service, Inc. for water service and 
Pine Island Currituck, LLC for wastewater 
service.     

 
PUD ALLOCATION: PUD Area: 587.88 acres. 
 Open Space Provided: 254.43 acres (43.28%) 
 LBH Allocation: 27.6 acreas (4.7%) 
  
I. NARRATIVE OF REQUEST: 

The developer is seeking preliminary plat approval/special use 
permit for two new phases of Currituck Club PUD.  Proposed 
Phase 8A consist of 29 residential lots and Phase 1A consist 
of one residential lot.  

 
II. QUESTION(S) BEFORE THE BOARD: 

Special Use Permit Criteria and Staff Findings: 
 

Special use permits (SUP) are intended to allow the Board of 
Commissioners flexibility in the administration of the UDO. 
Through the SUP procedure, property uses which would otherwise 
be considered undesirable in certain districts can be 
developed subject to conditions of approval to minimize any 
negative effects they might have on surrounding properties. 
 
In order to approve a SUP, certain criteria must be satisfied.  
The criteria and suggested findings of fact are outlined as 
follows: 

 
1. Completeness of application. 

Suggested Findings: 
a. The application is complete.  

 

23



February 7, 2011, BOC Meeting   5 

2. The proposed use is among those listed in the Table of 
Permissible Uses as a special use indicated with an “S”. 
Suggested Findings: 
a.  The proposed use is listed in the Table of Permissible 

Uses. 
b. Chapter 10 requires all major subdivisions obtain a 

special use permit. 
 

3. The conditions proposed meet or exceed the minimum 
requirements of this ordinance. 
Suggested Findings: 
a. The conditions proposed meet or exceed the minimum 

requirements of this ordinance. 
 

4. The special use will not endanger the public health or 
safety. 
Suggested Findings: 
a. The conditions proposed will not endanger the public 

health or safety. 
 

5. The special use will not injure the value of adjoining or 
abutting property and will be in harmony with the area in 
which it is located. 
Suggested Findings: 
a. The proposed subdivision is another phase of Currituck 

Club PUD which already consists of 628 lots.  The use 
will be in harmony with the area in which it is located.  

 
6. The special use will be in conformity with the Land Use 

Plan or other officially adopted plan. 
Suggested Findings: 
a. The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies this site as Full 

Service within the Corolla subarea.  Residential 
development in Full Service areas should have a base 
density of 2 units per acre but could be increased to 3-4 
units per acre through overlay zoning depending upon 
services available and the potential impact on the 
surrounding areas.  An overall density of no more than 3 
units per acre should apply to PUDs in the Corolla 
subarea. The proposed use and conditions are keeping with 
the policies of the plan, some of which are: 
 
POLICY TR8: Local streets shall be designed and built to 
allow for convenient CIRCULATION WITHIN AND BETWEEN 
NEIGHBORHOODS and to encourage mobility by pedestrians 
and bicyclists. Care shall be taken to encourage local 
street “connectivity” without creating opportunities for 
cut-through traffic from outside the connected areas. 
 
POLICY TR9: BIKEWAY FACILITIES shall be encouraged as 
energy-efficient, healthful, and environmentally sound 
alternatives to the automobile. The inclusion of 
bikeways, sidewalks, trails, and other alternatives to 

24



February 7, 2011, BOC Meeting   6 

the automobile shall be encouraged in both public and 
private developments. 

 
7. The special use will not exceed the county's ability to 

provide adequate public facilities, including, but not 
limited to, schools, fire and rescue, law enforcement, and 
other county facilities.  Applicable state standards and 
guidelines shall be followed for determining when public 
facilities are adequate. Such facilities must be in place 
or programmed to be in place within two years after the 
initial approval of the plan (sketch plan in the case of 
major subdivisions). 
Suggested Findings: 
a. The county has adequate public facilities for this 

development.   
 
III. TECHNICAL REVIEW COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 

Pursuant to the Unified Development Ordinance, the Technical 
Review Committee recommends approval subject to the following 
plan corrections: 
 

Planning 
1. Section 9.1.5.3 of the UDO requires spacing between 

driveways and intersections.  In this case, the proposed 
Windswept Ridge Lane would need to be spaced 230 feet away 
from the existing driveway access to Windswept Ridge Villas 
(labeled as “Access Easement DB 473, PG 887…” on the plat).  
The same section of the UDO also allows for the permit 
issuing authority to authorize deviations from the spacing 
standards.  The applicant is proposing this street 
configuration because the UDO requires subdivisions to be 
accessed from Right-of-Ways, and difficulties with 
dedicating the existing driveway access to Windswept Ridge 
Villas as a Right-of-Way.  Both the applicant and staff 
feel Windswept Ridge Villas and the proposed development 
should be accessed from one street as the proposed 
configuration will require an existing tennis court to be 
removed and may harm the safety of the residents with the 
two accesses being located so closely together.   The 
applicant has submitted a drawing showing how driveway 
interconnection between the two developments could be 
accomplished and agreed to this configuration at the 
Planning Board meeting.  

 
2. Section 9.1.8.5 of the UDO requires concrete sidewalks 

along both sides of all proposed streets.  The applicant is 
not proposing sidewalks along the east side of the proposed 
Dune Ridge Court, adjacent to NC12, and for roughly the 
first 320 feet on the north side of the proposed Windswept 
Ridge Lane.  This sidewalk layout requires a variance 
approved by the BOC.  A variance application will need to 
be completed and submitted for review by staff prior to the 
BOC meeting.  Staff agrees that sidewalks may not be 
necessary on the east side of Dune Ridge Court, and will 

25



February 7, 2011, BOC Meeting   7 

need to review the variance application before recommending 
on the proposed sidewalk layout along Windswept Ridge Lane.  

 
Currituck County Engineer, Eric Weatherly 

1. Based on previous comments regarding water: Provide letter 
of approval from NCDENR – PWSS. 

 
Albemarle Regional Health Services 

1. Obtain wastewater approval from NC Division of Water 
Quality.  

 
IV. PLANNING STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends conditional approval of the preliminary 
plat/special use permit subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. A variance application is submitted and approved by the 

Board of Commissioners to allow for deviation in the 
sidewalk requirements of section 9.1.8.5 of the UDO.  

2. Either the proposed development and Windswept Ridge Villas 
share the same access to Hunt Club Drive or the proposed 
Windswept Ridge Lane and driveway to Windswept Ridge Villas 
are separated by 230 feet as stated in section 9.1.5.3 of 
the UDO.      

3. The Technical Review Committee shall approve the 
preliminary plat prior to the submission of pre-
construction plans. Any required revisions of the 
preliminary plat shall be submitted to the TRC for a second 
review following the issuance of the special use permit. 

 
V.  PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION:  

The Planning Board recommended approval of the preliminary 
plat/special use permit with staff recommendations and added 
conditions: 
• A variance application shall be filed to allow for deviation in 

the sidewalk requirements in both areas due to topographical 
concerns and that a public safety issue is not created. 

•  Provide a safe route for the golf cart path. 
 
PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION (1/11/11) 
Mr. Clark asked if the lack of sidewalks create a public safety 
issue. 
 
Mr. Woody stated not along the eastern property boundary. 
 
Mr. Clark asked if the single access that serves the subdivision 
and condominiums would be over stressed with to much traffic. 
 
Mr. Woody stated no but having two access points side-by-side 
would be dangerous.  
 
Mr. Midgette stated that since these sidewalk requirements have 
been in effect for three years he is concerned with setting a 
precedent if you deviate from them.  
 

26



February 7, 2011, BOC Meeting   8 

Mr. Woody stated that technically a variance does not set a 
precedent it is site specific.  
 
Mr. Valdivieso stated the reason they are asking for a variance 
request for the sidewalks is that there are no homes on this side 
of NC12. It is a long stretch, would be costly, and there is no 
practical use for a sidewalk.  Mr. Valdivieso stated there are no 
safety issues without putting the sidewalks in.  Mr. Valdivieso 
stated he has been affiliated with the Currituck Club, which is a 
Planned Unit Development (PUD) since 1992.  The condominiums that 
exist today have been sold to private owners and the area around 
the condos is open space which they all have an interest in. 
Currently it is a legal issue between the original developer of 
the property turning this open space over to the condominium 
association.  The property they are subdividing reverted back to 
Currituck Association Residential Partnership.  They negotiated 
to use this easement to access the property.  The current Unified 
Development Ordinance prohibits this for subdivisions; you have 
to have a deed of access right-a-way to access subdivided 
property. The developer and owner have been working with Wind 
Swept Villas. The amenities (tennis courts and pools) for Wind 
Swept Villas are on Currituck Association Residential Partnership 
property. The proposed entrance will impact the tennis courts. If 
they cannot use the proposed entrance and it would have to move 
southward, they would have to remove the pool. Mr. Valdivieso 
stated that if the homeowners association wins or settles with 
the original developer and gets control of the open space, then 
they can turn over the easement that is there and dedicate to the 
adjacent property which can be absorbed as a right-a-way.  Mr. 
Valdivieso stated they would like to move forward with the 
preliminary plat with an alternative layout and when they come 
back with the final plat they will come in with the straight 
driveway.      
 
Mr. Woody stated that staff supports the alternative access 
layout. 
 
The Planning Board discussed the sidewalk issue, stormwater 
runoff, and entrance proposal and how it would affect the tennis 
courts and pools.   
 
Mr. Cherry stated that the Currituck Club is a gated community 
that promotes people to use the main entrance and not have people 
to cross private land if the sidewalks were installed.  
 
Mr. Sachs stated he is the treasurer for the Wind Swept Bridge 
Property Association. The developer did not respond to the 
lawsuit within the thirty day period so they have asked for a 
judgment in order to have the property deeded over to them. Mr. 
Sachs is asking the Planning Board to approve this recommendation 
in that the primary entrance way will be through the easement 
area so that the tennis courts and pools stay.   
 

27



February 7, 2011, BOC Meeting   9 

Mr. Sides stated that Mr. Valdivieso needs to look into the golf 
cart path which has approximately 130 carts per day during the 
season. 
   
Mr. Valdivieso stated they will look into it. 
 
Ms. Taylor stated that Ocean Sands has had flooding and can they 
be assured that no additional runoff from drainage will incur 
with this project.  
 
Mr. Valdivieso stated that this area is a geographic issue and 
certain events you will still have flooding. Mr. Valdivieso 
stated they are addressing stormwater on this subdivision and 
directing it to a pond which is on the property.  
 
ACTION 
Mr. Clark moved to approve PB 94-49 with the findings of fact and 
staff recommendation included in the case analysis and the 
following conditions: 

• A variance application shall be filed to allow for 
deviation in the sidewalk requirements in both areas due to 
topographical concerns and that a public safety issue is 
not created. 

•  Provide a safe route for the golf cart path. 
Ms. Wilson seconded the motion. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

Eddie Valdivieso, Engineer, was present to answer 
questions. 

There being no further comments, the public hearing was 
closed. 

Commissioner O’Neal moved to approve with the findings of 
fact, staff recommendations, Planning Board 
recommendations, and the following condition: The proposed 
variance for a reduction in the sidewalk requirements is 
granted due to topographical concerns and that a public 
safety issue is not created.  Commissioner Etheridge 
seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 

Appointments to Currituck County FEMS Peer Review Board   

Commissioner O’Neal moved to appoint the list of members 
presented by Chief Glover.  Commissioner Martin seconded 
the motion. Motion carried. 

Roger Gallant, Krisse Williams, Robert Glover, Teresa 
Wheeler, Stephanie Flowers, Elizabeth Hodges, Ike McRee, 
Josh Hammond, Mike Whitehurst, Lee Morris, Fran Williford, 
Sylvia Wolff, David Jensen and Tonya Crawford.  

28



February 7, 2011, BOC Meeting   10 

Appointments to Economic Development Board   

Commissioner Martin moved to appoint Frances Walker.  
Commissioner Rorer reappointed David Palmer.  Appointments 
were approved by acclamation. 

Appointments to Senior Citizen Advisory Board  

Commissioner O’Neal moved to table. Commissioner Gilbert 
seconded the motion.  Motion carried.  

Appointment of Commissioner to LEPC Committee   

Commissioner O’Neal moved to appoint Chairman Aydlett. 
Commissioner Etheridge seconded the motion.  Motion 
carried. 

Appointments to the Board of Adjustment   

Commissioner Etheridge moved to table.  Commissioner Petrey 
seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 

Consent Agenda: 
1.Resolution opposing Insurance Rate Increase 
2. Amend Moyock VFD Contract to provide for county 

to pay invoices 
3. Project Ordinance for Sheriff Vault 
4. Public School Capital Building Fund application 

for school computers 
5. Lottery applications (3) - Knotts Island Elem - 

replace connector roof; JP Knapp - replace 
chiller; Griggs Elem - bus canopy 

6. Budget Amendments 
7. Change Order-Outer Banks Visitor Center 
8. Approval of January 18, 2011, Minutes 
9. Resolution supporting Gap Funding for Mid-

County Bridge 
 

Commissioner Etheridge moved to approve.  Commissioner 
Petrey seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FOR  
CURRITUCK COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA  

OPPOSING PROPOSED INCREASES TO DWELLING INSURANCE POLICIES 
 
 WHEREAS, on January 4, 2011, the North Carolina Rate 
Bureau filed a request with the North Carolina Department 
of Insurance for an increase in rates for Dwelling Policy 
averaging 20.9% statewide; and  
  

29



February 7, 2011, BOC Meeting   11 

 WHEREAS, Dwelling Policy coverage is typically 
extended to non-owner occupied homes, second homes, rental 
and investment properties, of which Currituck County has an 
abundance, that are critical to our economic well-being; 
and  
 
 WHEREAS, Eastern North Carolina, Currituck County 
included, continue to bear the brunt of rate increases 
through coverage offered by the North Carolina Insurance 
Underwriters Association (Beach Plan), although the loss 
history of the area does not justify such high rates; while 
33 counties and the City of Charlotte have not seen a rate 
increase in 18 years; and  
 

WHEREAS, the North Carolina Rate Bureau’s request for 
increasing rates for Dwelling Policies could also increase 
Extended Coverage (Wind and Hail) by up to 41.65%.  Such an 
increase is especially crippling in Eastern North Carolina, 
where annual premiums could increase over $1,000 for a 
$300,000 property and rates are typically 5-times higher 
than other areas of the State; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Currituck County Board of Commissioners 

strongly opposes these proposed rate increases to the 
Dwelling Policy as they will further damage an already 
weakened economy by exponentially and unfairly increasing 
housing costs to homeowners and tenants; and  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of 
Commissioners for Currituck County, North Carolina that: 
 
 Section 1.  Currituck County vehemently opposes any 
increase to premiums and deductibles to Dwelling Policies 
as proposed by the January 4th filing of the North Carolina 
Rate Bureau as harmful to the economic and social well-
being of the County. 
 
COUNTY OF CURRITUCK 
CAPITAL PROJECT ORDINANCE 
 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Currituck County Board of Commissioners, North Carolina that pursuant 
to Section 13.2 of Chapter 159 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, the following capital 
project ordinance is hereby adopted: 
 
 
SECTION 1. The projects authorized are design, construction management and construction 
of Sheriff evidence vault and storage space. 
 
 
SECTION 2. The following amounts are appropriated for the project: 

30



February 7, 2011, BOC Meeting   12 

 

Professional Services/Design & Construction Mgmt 19,735$           

Contracted Services 350,000$         

Reimburseable Expenses 10,000$           

Contingency 20,265$           

400,000$         

 
 

SECTION 3. The following revenues are available to complete this project: 
 

Transfer from Operating fund 143,350$          
Transfer from Transfer Tax Capital Fund 256,650$          

400,000$          

 
 
SECTION 4. The Finance Director is hereby directed to report, on a quarterly basis, on the 
financial status of each project element delineated in Section 2 above. 
 
 
SECTION 5.  SPECIAL APPROPRIATIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 
 

The Budget Officer is hereby authorized to transfer appropriations within the fund as 
contained herein under the following conditions: 
 
a. He may transfer amounts between object line items within the fund up to 

One Thousand dollars ($1,000). 
 
 

SECTION 6.  CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS 
 

The County Manager is hereby authorized to execute contractual documents under the 
following conditions: 
 
a. He may execute contracts for construction or repair projects which do not 

require formal competitive bid procedures. 
 

b. He may execute contracts for (1) purchases of apparatus, supplies, and 
materials, or equipment which are within the budgeted departmental appropriations; (2) 
leases of personal property for a duration of one year or less and within budgeted 
departmental appropriations; and (3) services which are within budgeted departmental 
appropriations. 
 

c. He may execute contracts, as the lessor or lessee of real property, which are of a 

31



February 7, 2011, BOC Meeting   13 

duration of one year or less which are within the budgeted departmental appropriations. 
 
 

SECTION 7.  USE OF BUDGET ORDINANCE 
 

The Budget Officer and the Finance Director shall use this capital project ordinance for 
administration of the budget and for the accounting system. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
     Debit    Credit  
       

    
 Decrease Revenue 

or   
 Increase Revenue 

or  
Account 
Number  Account Description   Increase Expense     
       
10330-431000  DSS Admin     $                23,034  
10330-432800  Daycare   $                268,840    
10390-499900  Fund Approriated Balance   $                    1,059    
10750-519503  Domestic Violence   $                       997    
10750-557700  Crisis Intervention   $                  20,978    
10752-519100  Title IV-E Foster Care     $                  9,000  
10752-519300  Title IV-B Adoption Assistance  $                    9,000    
10752-519600  Child Daycare     $              163,840  
10752-519601  Smart Start     $              105,000  
       
     $                300,874    $              300,874  
       
Explanation: 
 
 
 
 

SOCIAL SERVICES ADMIN (750) - Adjust budget to the state's Funding 
Authorization. PUBLIC ASSISTANCE (752) - Adjust Daycare budget to the state's 
funding authorization and adjust IV-B Adoption Assistance due to the adoption of a 
special needs child. 

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Decreased by $246,865. 
 
 
  
     Debit    Credit  
       

    
 Decrease Revenue 

or   
 Increase Revenue 

or  
Account 
Number  Account Description   Increase Expense     
       
61818-590000  Capital Outlay   $                    1,700    

32



February 7, 2011, BOC Meeting   14 

61818-532000  Supplies     $                  1,700  
       
     $                    1,700    $                  1,700  
       
Explanation: 
 

Mainland Water (61818) - Transfer funds to replace the pump for the sewer at the 
Mainland Water plant. 

Net Budget Effect: Mainland Water Fund (61) - No change. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
     Debit    Credit  
       

    
 Decrease Revenue 

or   
 Increase Revenue 

or  
Account 
Number  Account Description   Increase Expense     
       
66868-511010  Data Transmission   $                    1,120    
66868-561000  Professional Services   $                    4,200    
66360-467000  Sale of Materials     $                  4,200  
66868-516000  Repairs & Maintenance     $                  1,120  
       
     $                    5,320    $                  5,320  
       
Explanation: 
 

Southern Outer Banks Water (66868) - To increase appropriations for surveying 
and data transmission for the Southern Outer Banks Water System. 

Net Budget Effect: Southern Outer Banks Water Fund (66) - Increased by $4,200. 
 
 
     Debit    Credit  
       

    
 Decrease Revenue 

or   
 Increase Revenue 

or  
Account 
Number  Account Description   Increase Expense     
       
50795-561000  Professional Services   $                  19,500    
50795-588000  Contingency     $                19,500  
       
     $                  19,500    $                19,500  
       
Explanation: 
 

Community Building/Sr Center/YMCA - Transfer funds from contingency for 
professional services for landscape design and oversight. 

Net Budget Effect: County Governmental Facilities Fund (50) - No change. 
 
 
     Debit    Credit  

33



February 7, 2011, BOC Meeting   15 

       

    
 Decrease Revenue 

or   
 Increase Revenue 

or  
Account 
Number  Account Description   Increase Expense     
       

10990-587050  
T T - County Govt 
Constr.Fund   $                143,350    

10460-592000  Courthouse Projects     $              143,350  
       

42450-487050  
T T - County Govt 
Constr.Fund   $                256,650    

42450-588000  Contingency     $              256,650  
       
     $                400,000    $              400,000  
       
Explanation: 
 

Sheriff Evidence Vault  - To appropriate additional funds for the evidence vault for 
the Sheriff's Department. 

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change. 
  Transfer Tax Capital Fund (42) - No change.   
 
 
     Debit    Credit  
       

    
 Decrease Revenue 

or   
 Increase Revenue 

or  
Account 
Number  Account Description   Increase Expense     
       
57878-590000  Capital Outlay   $                267,175    
57878-588000  Contingency   $                  56,825    
57360-471000  Tap & Connection Fees     $              324,000  
       
     $                324,000    $              324,000  
       
Explanation: Moyock Sewer Construction (57878)  - To record additional tap fee. 
Net Budget Effect: Moyock Sewer Construction (57) - Increased by $324,000. 
 
 
     Debit    Credit  
       

    
 Decrease Revenue 

or   
 Increase Revenue 

or  
Account 
Number  Account Description   Increase Expense     
       

55818-587061  
T T - Mainland Water Oper. 
Fund  $                724,547    

55380-481000  Investment Earnings     $              204,720  
55818-563000  Professional Services     $                     283  
55818-588003  Contingency     $              169,286  
55818-591001  Capital Outlay     $                  5,851  
55818-592001  Capital Outlay     $              107,988  

34



February 7, 2011, BOC Meeting   16 

55818-592003  Capital Outlay     $                  6,402  
55818-593004  Capital Outlay     $                55,138  
55818-593005  Capital Outlay     $                     764  
55818-593007  Capital Outlay     $                28,304  
55818-593008  Capital Outlay     $              114,573  
55818-594000  Capital Outlay     $                14,645  
55818-594001  Capital Outlay     $                16,593  
       
     $                724,547    $              724,547  
       
Explanation: 
 

Mainland Water Construction and Operating Funds (55818) - Transfer funds to 
Mainland Water Operating Fund to close our Mainland Water Construction. 

Net Budget Effect: Mainland Water Construction Fund (55) - Increased by $204,720. 
 
 
     Debit    Credit  
       

    
 Decrease Revenue 

or   
 Increase Revenue 

or  
Account 
Number  Account Description   Increase Expense     
       

51848-590000  
Capital Outlay - 
Technology   $                    5,250    

51848-593002  
Knotts Island Elem - Conn. 
roof  $                  16,000    

51848-599001  
JP Knapp - Chiller 
replacement  $                150,000    

51848-592001  Griggs Elem - Bus canopy   $                  65,000    

51380-425000  
Public School Capital Bldg 
Fund    $                  5,250  

51380-425001  Lottery Funds     $              231,000  
       
     $                236,250    $              236,250  
       
Explanation: 
 
 

School Construction Funds (51848) - Increase appropriations to use PSCBF Funds 
and lottery funds for computer equipment and building maintenance per funding 
applications. 

Net Budget Effect: School Construction Fund (51) - Increased by $213,250. 
 
 
     Debit    Credit  
       

    
 Decrease Revenue 

or   
 Increase Revenue 

or  
Account 
Number  Account Description   Increase Expense     
       

10640-545002  
Contract Services-NCSU 
salaries  $                    4,100    

10640-545000  Contract Services       $                  4,100  
       
     $                    4,100    $                  4,100  

35



February 7, 2011, BOC Meeting   17 

       
Explanation: 
 

Cooperative Extension (10640) - To reallocate Cooperative Extension contract 
services for operations for the remainder of this fiscal year. 

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
     Debit    Credit  
       

    
 Decrease Revenue 

or   
 Increase Revenue 

or  
Account 
Number  Account Description   Increase Expense     
       

51848-591000  
CCMS HVAC 
Replacement   $                       400    

51380-425001  Lottery Funds   $                  11,038    
51848-593001  KI Elem Chiller     $                  6,609  
51848-595003  CCHS Chiller      $                  4,829  
       
     $                  11,438    $                11,438  
       
Explanation: 
 
 

School Construction Fund (51) - To move residual funds to CCMS HVAC replace 
for project overage and return remaining funds to the lottery account.  These 
projects are now completed and closed. 

Net Budget Effect: School Construction Fund (51) - Decreased by $11,038. 
 
 
     Debit    Credit  
       

    
 Decrease Revenue 

or   
 Increase Revenue 

or  
Account 
Number  Account Description   Increase Expense     
       
10510-557500  Crime Control Act   $                       195    
10510-516200  Vehicle Maintenance   $                    9,234    
10330-424000  Officer Fees     $                     750  
10380-484001  Insurance Recovery     $                  8,484  

10390-499900  
Appropriated Fund 
Balance    195  

     $                    9,429    $                  9,429  
       
Explanation: 
 

Sheriff (10510) - Increase in appropriations to repair vehicles damaged in accidents 
and for Crime Control expenses for the remainder of this fiscal year. 

36



February 7, 2011, BOC Meeting   18 

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $9,429. 
 
 
     Debit    Credit  
       

    
 Decrease Revenue 

or   
 Increase Revenue 

or  
Account 
Number  Account Description   Increase Expense     
       
12543-511003  Telephone & Postage   $                    3,700    
12543-513003  Utilities   $                  14,000    

12543-514503  
Travel/Training & 
Education   $                  16,000    

12543-516003  Maintenance & Repair   $                  34,000    
12543-516103  Building & Grounds   $                  27,000    
12543-531003  Gas   $                  10,000    
12543-532003  Office supplies   $                    3,000    
12543-532103  Fire supplies   $                  16,300    

12543-536103  
Personal Protective 
Equipment  $                  18,000    

12543-545000  Contract Services     $              196,000  
12543-553003  Dues & Subscriptions   $                    3,000    
12543-554003  Insurance   $                    9,000    
12543-561003  Professional Services   $                    7,000    
12543-590003  Capital Outlay   $                  35,000    
       
     $                196,000    $              196,000  
       
Explanation: 
 
 

Moyock Volunteer Fire Department (12543) - To transfer funds to line items per 
contract revision to have County finance department pay invoices on behalf of the 
Moyock Volunteer Fire Department. 

Net Budget Effect: Fire Services Fund (12) - No change. 
 
 

RESOLUTION 
SUPPORTING GAP FUNDING 
MID CURRITUCK BRIDGE 

  
WHEREAS, almost twenty-five years, the Currituck County 
Board of Commissioners has recognized that a bridge across 
Currituck Sound from the mainland to Corolla is vitally 
important to the economic growth and general well being of 
Currituck County, Northeast North Carolina and North 
Carolina, by providing a undeniably better, safer access 
for residents, vacationers and business travelers to the 
Northern Outer Banks; and, 
  
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners acknowledges that time 
is of the essence, if Currituck County and the State of 
North Carolina are to ensure the public’s safety, the 
provision of adequate and quality electric power, water, 

37



February 7, 2011, BOC Meeting   19 

wastewater, and schools and convenient and ready access of 
an adequate labor force to help meet the ever increasing 
needs of the Outer Banks; and, 
  
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners has declared its 
intention to protect the county’s natural and cultural 
resources, while moving forward with the construction of 
the Currituck Mid-County Bridge in a expeditious manner; 
and, 
   
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners recognizes that 
although the North Carolina Turnpike Authority will 
ultimately determine the final construction alignment of 
the Currituck Mid-County Bridge, the county will seek to 
mitigate impacts on the residents of Currituck County; and, 
  
WHEREAS, the last two State of North Carolina budgets 
authorized and implemented "Gap Funding" in support of the 
Currituck Mid-Currituck Bridge through the NC Department of 
Transportation, funding that without which would put the 
feasibility of the project in serious peril and cause 
immediate delays; and, 
  
WHEREAS, the "Gap Funding" allocated to the Currituck Mid-
Currituck Bridge does not impact the State of North 
Carolina’s General Fund and its reallocation would not 
impact the state’s budget but, rather, would irreparably 
harm over twenty-five years of hard work, support and 
progress on this most critical public safety and economic 
development infrastructure project for one of North 
Carolina's most prized tourist destinations. 
  
NOW, THERE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FOR 
CURRITUCK COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA THAT: 
  
SECTION 1.  Currituck County respectfully requests that the 
North Carolina General Assembly continue the "Gap Funding" 
for the Currituck Mid-County Bridge which has been 
authorized and included in the last two North Carolina 
Budgets. 
   
SECTION 2.  Currituck County requests that the final 
construction alignment for the Currituck Mid-County Bridge 
minimize the impact on Currituck County Mainland and Outer 
Banks citizens and their property while accomplishing the 
stated objectives and of this essential bridge.  

Commissioner’s Report 

38



February 7, 2011, BOC Meeting   20 

Commissioner Gilbert, stated that the Moyock VFD will have 
a breakfast on March 13, 2011. 

Commissioner Petrey stated that the Corolla Wild Horse Fund 
will have a night at the races on March 19.  Tickets are 
$35 each. 

Commissioner Martin, commented on crime in neighborhoods 
and asked citizens to keep an eye open for suspicious 
behavior. 

Commissioner O’Neal stated that there will be a joint 
meeting with the Tourism Board, ED Board and Airport Board 
on March 10 at 6:00 p.m. Senior Center. He also stated that 
he has received several calls from residents on Bells 
Island about being included in the flight path by the 
Airport Board.  Commissioner Martin assured him that this 
was not the wishes of residents on Bells Island.  Mr. Woody 
stated that it would not be included. 

Vice-Chairman Rorer, attended the Albemarle Commission 
meeting and was informed that the Commission will not 
include scattered site improvements in the future. 

County Manager’s Report 

Dan Scanlon, County Manager, stated that the Moyock Sewer 
project is moving forward with the property purchased.  A 
letter will go out to businesses with a rate schedule and 
request them to sign up for sewer. 

He also updated the public on the new web sight for 
calendar of events and other web site services. 

Closed Session: 

Vice-Chairman Rorer moved to go into Closed Session 
According to GS 143-318.11 (4) to discuss economic 
development. Commissioner Gilbert seconded the motion. 

Adjourn 

After reconvening from closed session, no action was taken.   

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned. 
 
 

39



R E S O L U T I O N 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Currituck County, 
North Carolina during its regularly scheduled meeting held 
on February 21, 2011 authorized the following, pursuant to 
GS 160A and 270(b), the property listed below be declared 
surplus and sold at a public auction to be scheduled. 
 
1999 Ford Taurus 1FAFP5309XA284157  
1995 Ford CR VIC 2FALP71WOSX159535  
1999 Ford Explorer 1FMZU34X7XUB50206 
2004 Jeep 1J4GW48S24C198167 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of 
Commissioners of County of Currituck declare these items as 
surplus. 
 
ADOPTED, this the 21st day of February, 2011. 
 
ATTEST: 
                        _____________________ 
______________          O. Vance Aydlett 
Gwen H. Keene           Chairman 
Clerk to the Board 
 

40



GRANT AGREEMENT

STATE AID TO AIRPORTS

BETWEEN

THEN C DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
AN AGENCY OF THE STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA

AND

CURRITUCK COUNTY

This Agreement made and entered into this the day of 20 by and between the

NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION hereinafter referred to as Department and

CURRITUCK COUNTY the public agency owning the CURRITUCK COUNTY REGIONAL AIRPORT

hereinafter referred to as Sponsor

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS Chapter 63 of the North Carolina General Statutes authorizes the Department subject to limitations and

conditions stated therein to provide State Aid in the forms of loans and grants to cities counties and public airport

authorities of North Carolina for the purpose of planning acquiring and improving municipal county and other publicly
owned or publicly controlled airport facilities and to authorize related programs of aviation safety education promotion and

longrange planning and

WHEREAS the Sponsor has made a formal application dated December 20 2010 to the Department for State Financial

Aid for the CURRITUCK COUNTY REGIONAL AIRPORT and

WHEREAS a grant in the amount of 459603 not to exceed 90 aercent of the nonfederal share of the final eligible

project costs has been approved subject to the conditions and limitations herein and

WHEREAS the Grant of State Airport Aid funds will be used for the following approved Project if a federal aid

project this scope shall also include any modifications thereto by the Federal Aviation Administration

NOW THEREFORE the Sponsor and Department do mutually hereby agree as follows

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

CONSTRUCT PARTIAL PARALLEL TAXIWAY STUB TAXIWAY AND APRON

AIRPORT CURRITUCK COUNTY

REGIONAL

PROJECT 362441041

DOA FORM 12l0

41



1 That the Sponsor shall promptly undertake the Project and complete all work on the Project prior to the 1st day of

JULY 2015 unless a written extension of time is granted by the Department

2 Work performed under this Agreement shall conform to the approved project description Any amendments to or

modification of the scope and terms of this Agreement shall be in the form of a Modified Agreement mutually executed by
the Sponsor and the Department except that an extension of time may be granted by the Department by written notice to the

Sponsor

3 Debarment and Suspension The Grantee agrees to comply and assures the compliance by each of its third party

contractors and sub recipients at any tier with the provisions of Executive Orders Nos 12549 and 12689 Debarment and

Suspension 31 USC 6101 note and US DOT regulations on Debarment and Suspension at 49CFRPart 29

4 The Sponsor certifies that it has adhered to all applicable laws regulations and procedures in the application for and

Sponsorsapproval of the Grant

5 For a material breach of this Agreement or the SponsorsAssurances the Sponsor shall be liable to the Department for

the return of all grant monies received

6 The Sponsor agrees to adhere to the standards and procedures contained in the State Aid to Airports Program

Guidance Handbook third edition dated January 1997 unless the Department issues a written waiver

7 The Sponsor agrees to comply with the SponsorsAssurances contained as a part of this Agreement

8NCGS 13332and Executive Order 24 prohibit the offer to or acceptance by any State Employee of any gift

from anyone with a contract withthe State or from any person seeking to do business with the State By execution of any

response in this grant agreement you attest for your entire organization and its employees or agents that you are notaware

that any such gift has been offered accepted or promised by any employees of your organization

DOA FORM1210

Page 2 of 1 1

42



IN WITNESS WHEREOF THE PARTIES HERETO EXECUTED THIS GRANT AGREEMENT THE DAY AND YEAR

FIRST WRITTEN ABOVE

NCDOT SEAL NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

SPONSOR SEAL

BY

Deputy Secretary for Transit

ATTEST

SPONSOR

Signed

Title

Attest

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA COUNTY OF

I

hereby certify that

acknowledged that he is of

Title Sponsor

hereinafter referred to as Sponsor and by authority duly given and as an act of said Sponsor the foregoing instrument was

signed by him attested by of the Sponsor

Name and Title

And the Seal of the Sponsor affixed hereto

WITNESS my hand and Notarial Seal this the

My Commission expires

a Notary Public in and for the County and State aforesaid do

personally came before me this day and

day of

Notary Public Signature

SEAL

201 I

DOAFORM l210

Page 3 of 11

43



RESOLUTION

A motion was made by

Name and Title

Name and Title

upon being put to a vote was duly accepted

and seconded by

for the adoption of the following resolution and

WHEREAS a Grant in the amount of 459 603 has been approved by the Department based on total estimated cost

of 510670 and

WHEREAS an amount equal to or greater than 10 percent of the total estimated project cost has been appropriated

by the Sponsor for this Project

NOW THEREFORE BE AND IT IS RESOLVED THAT THE

Title

of the Sponsor be and he hereby is authorized and empowered to enter into a Grant Agreement with the Department thereby

binding the Sponsor to the fulfillment of its obligation incurred under this Grant Agreement or any mutually agreed upon

modification thereof

1

Name and Title

Sponsor

is a true and correct copy of an excerpt from the minutes of the

Sponsor

duly and regularly held on the day of

This the day of

SPONSOR SEAL

20

Signed

Title

Of The

the

hereby certify that the above

of a meeting

DOA FORM 1210

Page 4 of 11

44



SECTION A SPONSORSASSURANCES GENERAL CONDITIONS

A1 The Sponsor certifies that it holds fee simple title to the property on which this project is to be constructed In the

event any work is proposed on property which has an easement or lease in the Sponsorsname the Sponsor agrees that it will

comply with the Departments conditions and receive written approval prior to any construction on such lease or easements

This condition does notapply to planning projects

A2 The Sponsor agrees to operate the Airport for the use and benefit of the general public and shall not deny reasonable

access to public facilities by the general public

A3 The Sponsor agrees to operate maintain and control the Airport in a safe and serviceable condition for a minimum

oftwent20years following the date of this Agreement and shall immediately undertake or cause to be undertaken such

action to correct safety deficiencies as may be brought to its attention by the Department

A4 The Sponsor agrees that any land purchased facilities constructed or equipment acquired under this Agreement shall

not be sold swapped leased or otherwise transferred from the control of the Sponsor without written concurrence of the

Department

A5 The Sponsor agrees that the state share of any land purchased facilities constructed or equipment acquired under

this Agreement shall be credited to the Department in a manner acceptable to the Department in the event such land facilities

or equipment are subsequently disposed of through sale or tease

A6 Insofar as it is within its power and reasonable the Sponsor shall either by the acquisition and retention of property

interest in fee or easement or by appropriate local zoning action prevent the construction of any object which may constitute

an obstruction to air navigation under the appropriate category of Federal Air Regulation Part 77 14 CFR 77

A7 Insofar as it is within its power and reasonable the Sponsor shall restrict the use of land adjacent to or in the

immediate vicinity of the airport to activities and purposes compatible with normal airport operations including landing and

taking off of aircraft and the noise produced by such operations by adoption of zoning laws by acquisition and the retention

of property interest in fee or easement

A8 Terminal building spaces constructed under this Grant Agreement shall be for the use of the general public The

Sponsor agrees that it will not use any space so constructed for private use or charge fees for the use of such space without

the written approval of the Department

Page 5 of 11

45



SECTION B SPONSORSASSURANCES PROJECT ADMINISTRATION

B1 The Airport shall comply with all requirements of the State Aid to Airports Program Guidance Handbook third edition

January 1997

B2 It is the policy of this State to encourage and promote participation by disadvantaged minority owned and women

owned businesses MBE and WBE in contracts let by the Department pursuant to GS 136284 for the planning design

preconstruction construction alteration or maintenance of State transportation infrastructure construction and in the

procurement of materials for these projects All State agencies institutions and political subdivisions shall cooperate with the

Department of Transportation and among themselves in all efforts to conduct outreach and to encourage and promote the use

of disadvantaged minority owned and women owned businesses in these contracts This is designed to ensure minority MBEs

and WBEs have maximum opportunity to participate in performance of NCDOT contracts let using state funding The

sponsor assures and certifies with respect to this grant that they will pursue these requirements as stipulated by the Department

in the advertising award and administration of all contracts and require the same for all contractors sub recipient or

subcontractors

MBEWBE program is governed by GS 136284and administered in accordance with Title 19A Chapter 02 Subchapter D

Section 1101 I l 12 of North Carolina Administrative Code 19A NCAC 02D1101

B3 The Sponsor shall submit draft plans and specifications or approved alternate for the project for review by the

Department prior to advertising for bids on the Project Should bids not be required on the project the Sponsor shall submit a

detailed scope of work and estimated costs prior to requesting Project Concurrence and Notice to Proceed form

AVCONCURAV503 for undertaking the project All plans and alternate shall be supported by engineersreport A list

of deliverables from the Sponsor to the Department is as follows

Planning Projects

1 Interim Planning Submittals All Airport Layout Plan Sheets Reports Projections Construction Cost

Estimate drawings sketches and all other pertinent information electronic copy PDF format Paper

copy if requested bond copy true halfsize

2 Final Submittal All Airport Layout Plan Sheets Reports Projections Construction Cost Estimate

drawings sketches and all other pertinent information electronic copies PDF format and AutoCAD or

MicroStation format Paper copy bond true halfsizefor plan sheets sketches

a All reports projections PDF Format Any element of the documents shall be delivered in its

original electronic formatie MSWord Excel AutoCAD if requested by the Department

b Sketches and drawings electronic copies PDF format and AutoCAD or MicroStation format

Paper copy bond truehalfsizefor plan sheets sketches

Page 6 of 11

46



Construction Projects
1 Interim Design Submittalsie 30 60 90Plan Sheets Technical Specifications Itemized

Construction Cost Estimate and Engineers Report electronic copy PDF format Paper copy if requested
bond true halfsizefor plan sheets

2 100 Design and Issue for Bid Submittals Plan Sheets Technical Specifications Itemized Construction

Cost Estimate EngineersReport and Bid Tab Any element of the documents shall be delivered in

electronic formatie MS Excel and PDF format and AutoCAD or MicroStation format and Paper copy

bond true halfsize for plan sheets

3 AsbuiltRecord Drawings

a Contract Documents Plan and Detail Sheets Technical Specifications electronic copies PDF

format and AutoCAD or MicroStation format and Paper copy bond true halfsize for plan sheets

b Technical Specifications electronic copies MS Word File and PDF format

c Final Engineers Report electronic copies PDF format unless otherwise requested

B4 Bids will be taken in accordance with N C General Statute 143129 Following bid opening or final contract

negotiations the Sponsor shall submit the Project Concurrence and Notice to Proceed AVCONCURAV503 request

along with the bid tabulations to the Department for review The Department will take action on the request including the

approval or disapproval of the SponsorsEmployment of specific contractors within ten 10dam of receipt Approval will be

communicated via a Contract Goal Requirements Letter sent directly to the Sponsor

B5 All contractors who bid or submit proposals for contracts in connection with this project must submit a statement of

noncollusion to the Sponsor

B6 The Sponsor shall notcommence construction or award construction contracts on the project until a written Project
Concurrence and Notice to Proceed AVCONCURAV503 is cosigned by the Sponsors Representative and the

Department or alternate written approval is provided by the Department

B7 The Sponsor shall submit quarterlX status reportsAVSTATUSAV502 to the Department unless otherwise

instructed and will immediately notify the Department of any significant problems which are encountered in the completion

of the project

B8 The Sponsor shall notify the Department of any significant meetings or inspections involving the Sponsor his

contractorsconsultants andor federal funding agencies concerning Project

B9 The Sponsor shall notify the Department within thirty 30 dam of completion of all work performed under this

agreement for the purpose of final acceptance inspection and completion of audit requirements by the Department

Page 7 of 11

47



B10 The Sponsor has full responsibility for assuring the completed Project meets the requirements of the Department and

appropriate federal funding agencies The Sponsor further certifies that all local state and federal requirements for the

conduct of this Project shall be met

BI1 It is the policy of the Department not to award contracts to contractors who have been removed from the

Departmentslist ofprequalified bidders without subsequent reinstatement Therefore no State funds will be provided for

any work performed by the contractors orsubcontractors which had been removed from the Departmentslist of pre

qualified bidders without subsequent reinstatement as of the date of the signing of the construction contract It shall be the

responsibility of Sponsor to insure that only properly qualified contractors are given construction contracts for work

SECTION C SPONSORSASSURANCES PROJECT ACCOUNTING AND PAYMENT

C1 The Sponsor shall record all funds received under this Agreement and shall keep the same in an identifiable Project

account The Sponsor and his contractors andor consultants shall maintain adequate records and documentation to

support all Project costs incurred under this Grant All records and documentation in support of the Project costs must be

identifiable as relating to the Project and must be acceptable costs only Acceptable costs are defined as those costs which are

acceptable under Federal Acquisition Regulations 1316 48 CFR OMC CircularA87 Acceptable items of work are

those referenced in the State Aid to Airports Program Guidance Handbook and North Carolina General Statutes The

Sponsorsaccounting procedures which were established for work as set out in this Agreement must be reviewed and accepted

by the Department prior to the final execution of this Agreement and payment of State funds except for Sponsor reporting

under OMB CircularA133

C2 The Sponsor and his contractors andor consultants shall permit free access to its accounts and records by official

representatives of the State of North Carolina Furthermore the Sponsor and contractors andor consultants shall maintain

all pertinent records and documentation for a period of not less than five 5Lfrom the date of final payment

C3 In accordance with OMB Circular A133 Audits of States Local Governments and NonProfit Organizations

wwwwhitehousegovwheopomblthe Airport shall arrange for an independent financial and compliance audit of its fiscal

operations The Airport shall furnish the Department with a copy of the independent audit report within thirty 30 days of

completion of the report but not later than nine 9 months after the Airports fiscal year ends

The Airport shall maintain all books documents papers accounting records and such other evidence as may be

appropriate to substantiate costs incurred under this Agreement Further the Airport shall make such materials available at its

office at all reasonable times during the contract period and for five 5 years from the date of final payment under this

agreement for inspection and audit by the Departments Fiscal Section

Page 8 of 11

48



C4 Payment of the funds obligated under this Grant Agreement shall be made in accordance with the following

schedule unless otherwise authorized by the Department
A Payments from NCDOT to the Sponsor are made on a reimbursement basis The Sponsor must pay all

contractorsvendors prior to or within 3 business days of receipt of the Departments reimbursement

B Payments will be made on the basis of progress payments which may be requested by the Sponsor as costs are

incurred but not more frequently than monthly Progress payments will be made provided the following requirements
have been met

1 The Grant Agreement has been executed and a Project ConcurrenceAVCONCURAV503 issued

2 The Project has received an appropriate environmental finding

3 The Sponsor has submitted a Proposed Project BudgetAVBUDGETAV504 accurately reflecting costs to date

The initial and revisedAVBUDGETAV504shall be approved by the Department With eachAVBUDGETAV

504 the Sponsor shall provide the following documentation

a Scope of Services for the project Consultant Fee Manhours Breakdown by task with hourly rates

Breakdown of Subconsultant and or Vendor Cost Schedule of Deliverables Estimated Construction Cost Plan

Sheet List

b Actual Bidding Cost once a project is bid Bid Tabulation Bid Schedule Recommendation for

Award

4 Additional information shall be provided as requested

5 The Sponsor has submitted an executed Interim Payment RequestAVPAYAV505 accurately reflecting costs

incurred to date

6 The Sponsor has complied with all applicable conditions of the State Aid to Airports Program Guidance Handbook

C The submission of progress payments is expected to parallel the value of work actually completed and costs incurred

At such point the Sponsor has requested payments equaling 100 of the State Grant it is expected that the approved

Project will be 100 complete

D Upon receipt of 100 of the State Grant the Sponsor will promptly complete Project acceptance and submit the

Project Completion and Final Payment RequestAVFINALAV506

C5 If after the acceptance of the Project by the Department the final State share of approved eligible items is less than

the amount of State funds actually disbursed for the Project the Sponsor shall reimburse the Department in an amount equal

to the difference between the amount of State funds actually disbursed and the final State share of the final audited approved

eligible Project costs within thirty 30 dam of notification by the Department of the amount due

Page 9 of 11

49



C6 If after the acceptance of the Project by the Department the final State share ofapproved eligible Project costs shall

be more than the amount of State funds obligated for the Project the Sponsor may make application to the Department for a

corresponding increase which will be considered for funding in accordance with their relative priority versus other

applications for available State funds

C7 Under certain conditions projects originally involving only state and local funds may subsequently be eligible for

reimbursement from federal funding agencies In such cases the Sponsor shall notify the Department of its intent to apply for

federal reimbursement and shall keep the Department informed of the status of such application In the event federal funds

are obtained for all or a portion of the Project the Sponsor shall refund to the Department an amount equal to the difference

between State funds originally disbursed for the work items subsequently receiving federal funds and the final State share of

the costs of the affected items of work Reimbursement will be made within ninety 90L of the date of the final

execution of the FAA Grant Agreement affecting the work elements in the approved Project

C8 For the purpose of calculating the State share of the Project federal funds are defined as funds provided by an

agency of the federal government for the specific purpose of undertaking the Project including Block Grant funds

administered by the Department

SECTION D SPONSORSASSURANCES REAL PROPERTY ACQUISITION

Dl The acquisition of land buildings and other real property involving the use of State Airport Aid funds shall be in

compliance with the provisions of this Section

D2 The Sponsor shall depict each parcel to be acquired on an airport property map containing the identity of the parcel

and its metes and bounds

D3 The acquisition cost of each parcel building or other real property acquired with State financial assistance shall be

based on the fair market value of the property as determined by an appraisal process acceptable to the Department

D4 For each parcel or building with an estimated cost of 100000 or less fair market value shall be established by a

single original appraisal and a review appraisal For complex acquisitions fair market value shall be established by two

original appraisals and one review appraisal

D5 All original and review appraisals shall be conducted by qualified appraisers who have no financial or other interest

in the property to be acquired

D6 The fair market value of a parcel will be established by the review appraiser based upon the information contained in

the original appraisal or appraisals

Page 10 of 11

50



D7 No negotiation for property acquisition shall be commenced between the Sponsor and the property owner until the

fair market value of the property has been established Initial negotiations shall be based upon the fair market value

D8 Negotiated values above the fair market value shall not be eligible for State funds unless prior to the final agreement

for acquisition the Sponsor has received the concurrence of the Department for paying such negotiated values in lieu of the

appraised fair market value

D9 Sponsors who adhere to the federal Uniform Guidelines for the Acquisition of Property shall be deemed to have

conformed to the Departmentsguidelines except that Paragraph 8 above shall also be applicable under such acquisitions

D0 In the event the Project is a low value noncomplex acquisition the Department at its option may accept the

original appraisal without the review appraisal In such cases all other provisions of this Section shall apply

D1 1 Failure to follow the requirements of this Section shall disqualify the property from State participation for any parcel

which has notbeen acquired in accordance with such standards

SECTION E Saonsors Acknowledgement of Executive Order 24 issued by Governor Perdue and NCGS13332

E1 Sponsor acknowledges and agrees that it is unlawful for any vendor or contractoriearchitect bidder contractor

construction manager design professional engineer landlord offeror seller subcontractor supplier or vendor to make

gifts or to give favors to any State employee of the Governors Cabinet AgenciesieAdministration Commerce

Correction Crime Control and Public Safety Cultural Resources Environment and Natural Resources Health and Human

Services Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Revenue Transportation and the Office of the Governor This

prohibition covers those vendors and contractors who

1 have a contract with a governmental agency or

2 have performed under such a contract within the past year or

3 anticipate bidding on such a contract in the future

For additional information regarding the specific requirements and exemptions vendors and contractors are encouraged to

review Executive Order 24 and GS Sec 13332

Revised 12110

Page 1 1 of 1 1

51


	Agenda
	Public Hearing and Action:
	88-66 Memo to BOC
	88-66 Site Plan
	88-66 Amended SUP Application
	88-66 SUP

	Appointments to Senior Citizen Advisory Board
	Senior Citizens Adv.Bd

	Appointments to the Board of Adjustment
	Board of Adjustment
	Board of Adj Applications

	Resolution for CWSRF & RLf Funding for utility projects
	resolution

	Resolution for ARH to seek Legislation to amend NCGS 136-44.7
	Resolution-EDTAP

	Budget Amendments
	Budget Amendments

	Approval of February 7, 2011, Minutes
	February 7 Minutes

	Resolution to declare Surplus Property
	Resolution

	Approval of State Airport Aid Grant Agreement
	Airport Aid Grant Agmt


